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CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... (gavel) . .. Good morning. The Public Works Environmental
Management [sic} meeting--Committee meeting is now called to order. Today is
October 31st, 2005. If I may, I just want to wish everybody a Happy Halloween
before this meeting ends. Thank you, Members, for dressing in orange and black.
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Good morning, Members. This morning we do have two items on the agenda, but
at this time I would like to introduce the Committee Members that are here with
us this morning. We do have the Vice-Chair Michael Molina, Member Robert
Carroll from Hana, Member Danny Mateo from Molokai, and joining us now is
Member Riki Hokama from Lanai.
Also with us this morning are the Administration. We do have Cindy Young
from the Corporation Counsel's Office, and Milton Arakawa as well as Joe
Krueger from the Public Works and Environmental Management Department. I'd
like to introduce our Staff. We do have Yvette Bantilan and Scott Jensen. Good
morning, again.
Members, we do have two items on the agenda. At this time, the Chair would like
to call for public testimony on both agenda items. And if I may, I want everybody
in the audience as well as Members here on the floor to put their cellphones or
pagers on silent mode or turn it off before we start. Thank you.
This morning we do have some testifiers. Each testifier will be given three
minutes to present their testimony with one minute to conclude. If the testifier
needs an additional three minutes the Chair will grant that three minutes after all
testifiers have testified.
So, Members, we do have two people that are signed up for public testimony.
And at this time, I'd like to call upon Mr. or Ms. Lori Sablas. And, if you could,
give us your name and the organization you are representing. Thank you .
. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY ...
MS. SABLAS: Good morning, Chair. My name is Lori Sablas, and I'm here as the past
Chair of the Maui County Cultural Resource Commission. I'm here to speak
specifically on Item, the second item on the agenda this morning on the Hana
bridges.
And I had, in fact, I just got back from a media blitz in New York, so I'm kind of
still jet lagged, but this is an important subject to me. I haven't even been back in
my office. And I bring to your attention my letter that I had sent out, and I think
you have it as a matter of record for Committee Members. And that was the letter
that I sent out on January 12th, regarding the preservation of Hana historic
bridges. Is this part of all the Members' file to, to review today? Can I ask that?
If you do have the copy of the letter, so that I don't have to take the time to read
it.

2

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

October 31, 2005

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MS. SABLAS: Okay. Well, agam, I wanted to come here personally to reem ... ,
reemphasize the importance, because personally to me Hana is a very, very
special place to many of people. And, and the reason why it is, is the drive. You
know, often times getting there quickly is not the whole object, but it's the
journey. And because of the bridges there, you know, I, I feel that it's been, it's
one of the most special place on Earth to have those bridges, I mean the Hana end.
And, and those bridges are very historic.
When Mr. Nelson was here it was an eye opener for us when he told us that the
bridges can indeed be repaired, because prior to that time as a member of the CRC
it's always been told to us that the bridges were not safe, that they needed to be
torn down and replaced, which we really, really objected to, because these are, it
would take away the historic nature of our, of the bridges.
And some simple things that he said that, you know, the cause of the deterioration
of the bridges is that over the years come, the planning, I mean they, instead of,
you know, when, when, they just repaved the road and put more and more
concrete on it instead of shaving it down. So, as a result over the years it's gotten
weight on it. And now, I'm not an engineer, but something as simple as that it
was like why wouldn't, why didn't we do it?
I mean why do we continue to do something like this, which is to keep adding
asphalt on, on the bridges instead of, like, he said, how he explained it to us as I
remember, this was back in January, that they needed to actually scrape down to
the very bottom, because the bridges are all very, very, as he said, very stable.
And I also had occasion to talk to the granddaughter of the, of the engineer of the
bridges Pam Howell, who is, you know, she, she and I travel on the media blitzes
together, and we, we spent a lot of time, and she talked about old photos that her
grandfather has of this bridge here, and I had eventually wanted to have it come
back, but my plea here to the Department is to really consider the
recommendation ofMr. Nelson including his offer to come here and to assist us-MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MS. SABLAS: --and being able to stabilize the bridges so that we don't have to replace
it, and basically that's what I'm here to talk about. Is to urge you please to take
the advan ... , the advice of some experts that CRC had brought in and not just go
ahead and do business as usual, because it hasn't worked for Maui County. So,
thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Lori. Members, any question for the testifier?
Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Good morning, Ms. Sablas.
MS. SABLAS: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Did structural engineers come and speak to your
Commission, because that's, that would be the appropriate type of engineers that
can speak about weight bearings, span distances ...
MS. SABLAS: Mr. Nelson, from what I understand, that was his job in Oregon, and this
has been his, his job there to give advice, and I cannot say if he was a structural
engineer, but he was the expert that Dawn Duensing at that time felt was the best
that she was aware of who could come to speak to us. And I'm sorry that Dawn is
not here, because she really was a champion for the restoration of the bridges.
And so, but from what I understand, now, he also spent time with our County
Public Works as well as the State, and his recommendation was, you know, again,
I, I cannot speak as an engineer.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Was our Police and Fire Departments able to provide
you with some comment regarding this issue?
MS. SABLAS: Not that I, I can recall.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Not even Fire Department and the type of vehicles
and, and weight loads that they carry across the bridges, and any concerns that
they may have in response?
MS. SABLAS: Specifically not the Fire Department, Riki, but we did have others testify
about the weight especially with construction going on and the heavy loads and,
and that the bridges at the time were built for a period of time that we did not
have, you know, traffic as we do today, because of the construction and heavy
load.
But, again, the engineer said he felt, and he compared it to bridges in Oregon that,
you know, the structural wise, and, and really felt that it really was not necessary
to destroy the bridges. And I'm just, again, speaking on behalf of him, of Mr.
Nelson as an expert who came here.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much.
MS. SABLAS: Dh-huh. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Hokama. Members, any more questions
for the testifier? If not, thank you, Ms. Sablas.
MS. SABLAS: Thank you, and Happy Halloween everybody.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The second person that signed up for public testimony, and is
going to be testifying on PW-18 is Steve Sutrov.
MR. SDTROV: Good morning, my name is Steve Sutrov. Good morning, Council,
Committee Chair and Council. I'm speaking on, for myself. I'm also a member
of the County Street Lighting Committee for the last four years. And I, I approve
definitely of a decision to go ahead with another test, LPS street lighting project.
We had one, we did actually a test that was with donated fixtures from an Oahu
company on, I, I think it, it might have been about two years ago it ended. It
lasted for about eight or nine months with, I think, three poles that were done up
by King Kekaulike High School.
And during that period of time, I, I don't think any public testimony was asked
for, but, or any received that was documented besides just from people talking to
me about what were the lights for originally, and then later on saying how come
we haven't done this earlier, and why don't we do it to the whole County and, and
different positive comments that I got from it, but I'm a bit biased by it also. I
think, I think because they were full cut-off fixtures and, and it seemed much
more appropriate for a rural community to, to have lower, you know, have better
standards than, than was there before. It was definitely appeasing to most people.
The price of this was estimated at $1,000 per pole. I think the County, at some
point, needs to look at this as being a relative cost and make sure it's appropriate
at $1,000 per pole. The Big Island has low pressure sodium. They do all their,
the County of Hawaii has, does all their installation, all their maintenance of all
their street lights I, I believe on, on County, State and Federal roads.
I think our County needs to look into that, and see if by buying some ladder trucks
and hiring a few people that know how, how to install and, and maintain these
fixtures whether we can save lots of money. And that's something that I'd like
for our County to eventually look into. A thousand dollars per pole, I think we
have to really look and really see if that's, especially if we're going to be
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eventually doing many poles, many light fixture installations we have to look at
that being a, a, a reasonable cost.
Location. Street lights are only required, I believe, by, by County law for, for
vehicular and, and pedestrian safety. They're not, they're not to be installed for,
for, for residential security, and that's something that is confusing for our
community.
So, the, on the Street Lighting Committee we get requests for lighting for, on
County roads to be installed, so they can illuminate their yards and their homes
for security. This is not a liability the County is supposed to be involved with,
and, and so, it's basically for vehicular and pedestrian safety that we install street
lights.
When we install, I'm going to focus on the issue today. We need to install these
lights for a test in, in an area that, probably a more urban area setting than a
residential, residential urban would be fine, but Up country it wouldn't probably
be appropriate.
Upcountry we, we have gotten many requests for light fixtures to be turned off or
not even be installed by developers, because residents Upcountry do not want
street lights in their neighborhoods or on their streets except if it's for vehicular or
pedestrian safety, the areas that are well traveled. Most places Upcountry are not
as well traveled as down in urban areas.
And so, I think these tests should be incorporated where most people are going to
be seeing them and utilizing them, which would be in more urban settings
preferably our County roads not State roads, and, and maybe in, in a couple of
neighborhood situations.
I'll finish up here quick. Duration of the test. It has been noted in past
information that has been supplied to the Outdoor Lighting Committee that was
here formed through the CounciL I, I'm sure your, the binder's about six inches
thick at least now, if that information-MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MR. SUTROV: --is still available. I'll finish up right now. The duration of the test
should be long enough to allow for people to become adapted to it, because it has
been noted in other communities that at first, especially the police have trouble,
you know, liking it and working with it, but as soon as they become adapted to it,
they realize it's actually a better light to work with, easier on the eyes and better
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contrast, and, and it's something that is accepted by the community after, after a
period of time.
So, the test has to be long enough for a period of adjustment. And I'd like to see
the Street Lighting Committee possibly involved. By County Code, we're
supposed to be, the Street Lighting Committee is supposed to, any, any, anything
that's being, with regards to the street lighting that is being discussed or related
with in the Public Works Department is supposed to be passed on to the Street
Lighting Committee for recommendation also. So, I'm not sure if that is
appropriate in this sense since we're looking at possibly going towards a
legislation of a bill but-MR. JENSEN: Four minutes.
MR. SUTROV: --I think that's something should be looked into. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any question for the testifier? Member
Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good morning, Mr. Sutrov. With
your involvement on the Street Lighting Committee and your experience with
regards to lighting, you mentioned about the, regarding the duration of the tests of
these lights. What would you recommend how long these lights stay out there on
these test sites?
MR. SUTROV: Well, the last test was up for nine months. I think it was supposed to be
for three months, but before they ever took them down it was many months later.
I'm not really sure. I, I would think an initial shock, or an initial, it might be a
shock of, you know, better lighting, because they're all full cut-off fixtures that's
going to be replacing other fixtures. And so, I, I wouldn't really be able to say. I
would say definitely at least three months maybe, maybe even longer.
And so, during that time take comments somehow. I'm not sure how. And, you
know, maybe in the Maui News do a, you know, what do think about this poll
after a period of maybe three months. Then after that maybe take another one,
maybe after another three months and see if it's, if it's changed, or, or, or that
kind of thing, because I think that's what it's going to take. This may be a period
of adjustment and people realizing that maybe this is the right way to go.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions for the testifier? If not, thank
you very much, again. Is there anyone out in the audience that would like to
provide public testimony at this time that haven't signed up? Seeing none,
Members, if there's no objections the Chair would like to close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much .

. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY ...

18

OUTDOOR LIGHTING (C.C. No. 00-125)

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, we do have the first item on our agenda, PW-12,
which is outdoor lighting. The Committee is in receipt of correspondence dated
October 19th, 2005, from the Department of Public Works and Environmental
Management transmitting a proposal for a low pressure sodium street light fixture
test in four location on the Island of Maui for the purpose of soliciting public
comment.
The test proposal is to convert existing high pressure sodium street light fixtures
at various location to low pressure sodium street light fixtures. The test will
convert approximately two to three street lights on Kapunakea Street in Lahaina,
Papa Avenue in Kahului, South Kihei Road in Kihei, and Iolani Street in
Pukalani. The cost per fixture is approximately $1,000.
At this time, if I can have Mr. Arakawa from the Department provide some
comments on this particular project. Mr. Arakawa.
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. This Item pertains to a proposed outdoor
lighting bill, which is before this Committee and has been deliberated on by
previous Council Committees as well. As you mentioned, one of the significant
issues of the Outdoor Lighting bill concerns the use of low pressure sodium
lighting.
This type of lighting emits light across a narrow portion of the light spectrum.
When LPS lighting is used colors, when seen under LPS lighting, may appear
different than they actually are in bright sunlight. For example, a red car may
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actually appear to look gray under an LPS street light. The current County street
lights are high pressure sodium lights, which emit light across a broad portion of
the light spectrum and under the current system there is true color rendition.
In order to obtain further feedback from the general public on the proposed use of
LPS lighting fixtures we are proposing to do a demonstration of LPS lighting
fixtures at the various locations on the Island, and we feel that this will provide
interested members of the public the opportunity to evaluate and provide feedback
on LPS lighting.
Our proposal to the Committee is that two to three street lights be converted to
lower pressure sodium at the following locations: in Lahaina along Kapunakea
Street in the vicinity of Front Street; in Kahului along Papa Avenue along a short
stretch between Waikala Street and Pohai Street; in Kihei along South Kihei Road
between Waiohuli Street and Welakahao Road; and in Pukalani on Iolani Street
downhill of Pukalani Street. We've chosen these roadways, because they are
relatively well traveled routes and are relatively absent of bright ambient lighting.
As was mentioned, the cost to convert high pressure sodium street lights to low
pressure sodium is approximately $1,000 per fixture. This would involve the
changing of not only the, the light fixture itself, but the arm of the street light.
With the four noted locations we're looking at a cost ranging from $8,000 to
$12,000 to do this demonstration. And the Department would propose to utilize
monies from its existing CIP budget for this, for this project.
I should also note that we have been in discussions with Towne Development, and
they are interested in doing a demonstration of low pressure sodium lighting in a
portion of their Kehalani Development right up here in Wailuku. And they are
proposing to include two LPS fixtures on one of their local residential streets also
as a demonstration.
Some mention was made about the time frame for this demonstration project, and
what we would propose is that, Maui Electric needs approximately three months
to get these LPS fixtures actually in place and on the street. So, our thought is
that we would do a six month test period from February to the, to, to July, because
we're thinking it will take three months to actually get it started, which would be,
take us through November, December and January. So, it could possibly start
from February. And the Council also has budget coming up in, from March to
mid-year in any event.
So, after July, thereafter the Committee could deliberate, obtain testimony, and
then decide on an appropriate course of action. That concludes our thoughts on
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the matter and your comments and recommendations on this issue are certainly
welcome.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Milton. Members, any questions for the Director?
Member Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Good morning, Mr. Arakawa. First of
all, thank you for this proposal. I think it's a good opportunity for the public to
make a judgment for themselves with regards to the use of these low pressure
sodium bulbs. First of all, will we be able to, I guess, determine the usage of
electricity as well as the cost difference of the electricity with regards to low
pressure sodium and high pressure sodium? Are, are these bulbs more energy
efficient than the high pressure sodium bulbs?
I don't know if you have that information, and, Mr. Chairman, I don't know if we
have a representative from Maui Electric here today to respond to it, but I can
make a request in writing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Yeah, we'll do a request in writing to Maui
Electric. If the Department can answer that question.
MR. YAMASHIT A: No, we don't have that information readily available, but initially
we thought that there would be a savings per fixture, but, yeah, I think Maui
Electric would pro ... , provide that information more accurately.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, and the cost of the pole which is estimated at a
thousand, was this the cost provided to the Department from Maui Electric?
MR. YAMASHITA: Correct.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. I'm just, I'm just curious, because to me it seems a
little high, but that's just my opinion. What will happen to the poles after, I guess
when the six month period is over will, will the fixtures stay up there with
different, back to high pressure sodium bulbs, or are these just portable fixture
poles?
MR. YAMASHITA: They're all, they're permanent poles, and they'll probably revert
back to the high pressure sodium light fixtures, because the lighting is required at
those, those locations.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, and how will the public be notified of this? I mean
aside from today's meeting I guess the residents who live along that, the street, I
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guess they primarily will be sending letters to the residents notifying them of this
project going on?
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Molina, if the Committee basically approves of this
demonstration project we can do some sort of a press release from our side to let
people know when the, the street lights will be changed and for what period
they'll be there, and also our thought as far as getting some feedback and coming
back to this Committee to provide that feedback at, at the appropriate time. So,
we'll provide that information via a press release.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, and in terms of the feedback will you, I guess be talking
to the residents who live along that road to get feedback from them or, I, I'm just
asking basically how will the public be able to comment aside from, you know,
our Committee meetings, and they call the Department with their thoughts or, or
the Department's office?
MR. ARAKAWA: Well, certainly once, once the street lights are implemented they can
certainly call our office with, with their comments, but we, we would recommend
that they provide their comments in writing to the Committee.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Molina. Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Good morning,
gentlemen. I, I guess I'm going to continue off from, from where Member
Molina just continued. The $1,000 per pole that includes the bulb or, or the, the,
the arm plus the bulb. There is no consideration of the manpower to install it?
MR. Y AMASHIT A: That includes everything.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Everything. So ...
MR. YAMASHITA: They submitted cost for the, the luminare itself is almost $800.
Yeah, and the, the labor was approximately $200 to 250 per pole.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, and MECO, MECO is part of this demonstration
project?
MR. ARAKAWA: That's correct. They, they'll be ordering the fixtures for us.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. So, I guess, I guess the, the next logical question
would be then if we're looking at a demonstration project, and if we're looking at
a project that perhaps will be one that we're, we're tending to lean towards in, in
the future, are, is, is this County prepared for the overwhelming cost of, of the
trans ... , transition between the, the high pressure versus the, the low?
MR. ARAKAWA: That was actually one of the motivations for us to try this
demonstration, because we really wanted to make sure that if the County passes
an ordinance to go to low pressure sodium that we did have public support for
that.
And so, we feel that the cost of eight to $12,000 to do a demonstration project
would be very small compared to the total cost to actually change all of the
fixtures to low pressure sodium eventually. And we would an... , anticipate that
total cost to be upwards of $4 million to change all of the street lights under our,
our jurisdiction to low pressure sodium.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, and, and, and has the, because, like, you
referenced with the, with the, I guess the shade of the lighting where a red vehicle
would appear gray in color has, does the Police Department have a problem with
this transition?
MR. ARAKAWA: Council member, I would prefer you direct that question to the Police
Department on that. They, they may have their own thoughts on the matter.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you. And, Corp. Counsel,
would we, what kind of exposure would we be stuck with just because of the
reference that I just mentioned a little while ago?
MS. YOUNG: Is that just with respect to the project or-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No, to the, the respect of, in the event of, of crime and
where one could not really identify, because the lighting was not appropriate.
MS. YOUNG: I can just really address that generally. If it, if the crime occurs on
County property, we generally have an obligation to maintain our property in a
safe manner that would include the appropriate lighting. And, and I think that's
why our office has always maintained the position that liability should be looked
at not because the bill per se exposes the County to liability.
It's really one where if the County was not able to financially maintain lighting in
a safe manner, or didn't provide adequate lighting from the outside. In other
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words, the discussion has always been switching out the lights one for one, but if,
if that's not adequate lighting, the one for one switch out then that may create
issues with respect to safety in maintaining our roadways, and our parks, and, and
our other properties in a safe manner.
And, and that's a call I think that would have to be made by the Public Works
Department. They have that information as far as what is safe. We wouldn't
necessarily know what is safe. Our, our, our comment is really just that the
County would have to maintain our, our properties in a safe manner.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. So, Mr. Arakawa, then during the
demonstration period aside from just the monitoring in, in the change of the type
of, of lighting are you aware whether or not the Police Department will also
monitor the same streets for instances that mayor may not occur?
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Mateo, I, I would prefer to refer that question to the
Police Department.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Mr. Chair, could-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, this morning we-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --is there anybody in here?
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
--yeah, Member Mateo, this morning we do have a
representative from the Police Department that can provide us more comments in
regards to the questions that you are asking.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And I'll bring him up later on.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, and one last question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. For the Department, the, the transition from
the high to the low in terms of costs, and, and I guess life of the, of the, the bulbs
themselves, is, is there, is there a difference in the longevity of the, the bulb that
costs $800?
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MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Mateo, I, I don't have that information for you, but I,
I can get that for you from Maui Electric.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Mateo. Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Quickly. Because it's a demonstration project the
maximum length is six months. Would that be a correct understanding on our
part, Mr. Director?
MR. ARAKAWA: No, actually in looking at the, the street lighting standards that we
have these are basically rules of the Department, the, the rules to allow the
Director to provide alternative means of lighting although the standard is for high
pressure sodium lighting.
So, our proposal before this Committee is, is to do this demonstration for six
months. However, you know, we're open to discussion as far as the time frame
involved.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Has your Department sought to possibly seek
U.S. Department of Energy funds for this type of test pro . . . , demonstration
project?
MR. ARAKAWA: No, we, we have not.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I would hope your, your Division or your Branch
would try and seek if there's additional Federal funds to assist your Department
... (change tape, End Side lA). . the other questions I would have is regarding ...
just verification. We own the right-of-way that the poles are on. We own the
poles since we're paying for the poles and the fixtures? Is that the County's
property too? And that the utility provides the grid, the wiring, and we pay for
that service to get energy, but everything else the County owns?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Department.
MR. ARAKA W A: Council member, we should probably check on the exact terms of the
agreement on that and get back to you.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. I, I, I would be interested
clari ... , reverifying, Mr. Chairman, please.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, we'll do that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And I just bring that up, because Hilo has basically
converted its whole town, city to low pressure sodium, and because you cannot
tell the difference between high pressure and low pressure anymore, you just have
one type of light, and it took me time to notice that it was all low pressure sodium
when you have no comparisons of bright and, and something different.
So, we, Chairman, you may want to get comments maybe from our colleagues on
the Big Island regarding Hilo, Hawaii Police Department to see if it's hindered
their efforts to provide protection and, and service to the community. Other than
that I am in, in support of this demonstration project, Mr., Mr. Chairman. So, I
would be open to your recommendation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Hokama, and we'll forward something to the
Hawaii Police Department. Member Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chairman. Question for Mr. Arakawa. With
regards to the, I guess you estimated a $4 million cost should this outdoor lighting
ordinance pass. Now, this would be spread out over "x" number of years; right?
We're not talking about $4 million right off the bat for one particular year or time
period?
MR. ARAKAWA: I, I guess at this point it's a matter of speculation as to how far we
spread it out. It, it, it kind of depends on what the bill, if it passes on outdoor
lighting, says and if it says we need to do it right away then we would have to ask
for it right away, but if, if it calls for gradual change, then it could be phased out
over time. So, I guess it, it would depend at this point.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. And, Chairman, if I stray off a little bit, I
know you do want to limit, not, not focus so much on the bill, but I guess the
issue of cost came up, so that's why I brought it up.
And if I could share with the Committee, about a year and a half ago my assistant
and I, as well as I think a representative from the Corp. Counsel's office, went to
Hilo and met with their attorneys there with the issue of liability. And from that
time they had indicated to us there were no issues related to the use of low
pressure sodium that had any, you know, legal concerns at that time, but it would
be good for us to, I guess, get a written response from their legal staff as well as if
there has been since that time. This was, if I recall, November of 2003 we went
over. There were no legal issues.
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So, if we could get an update on that particular matter I think: it would help. So, I
just wanted to make that suggestion to the Committee Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank: you, Member Molina. Yeah, we'll do a, a follow-up
with the Corporation Counsel of the, the Big Island. Members, any more
questions for the Department? If none, at this time I would like to call on Captain
Matsuoka from the Maui Police Department to give us some comments in regards
to this proposed testing that we want to do on installing some low pressure
sodium fixtures here on Maui.
MR. MATSUOKA: Good morning, Council Members-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Good morning.
MR. MATSUOKA: --Chair Pontanilla. My name is Milton Matsuoka. I'm, I'm
presently the Commander of the Wailuku Patrol Division. Right now I would say
that what we would probably like is if Public Works, once the lights are actually
installed if they could give us notification by letter so that we could actually take
a look at it ourselves to see the difference. Maybe try and do some tests on our
own to see if there is a degradation as far as suspect identification, even color
degradation.
I know definitely having been to Hilo and seeing these lights in the past, I know
that there is a definite color degradation as far as vehicles are concerned. But,
again, we leave that until we can actually make a, I wouldn't say side-by-side
comparison, but at least we, we'll have the two different types of lights within a
small area that we could try and make a de ... , de ... , well, distinguish between
the two and make an actual written comment from that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Captain Matsuoka. Members, any question for the
Police Department? Member Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Good morning-MR. MATSUOKA: Good morning.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: --Captain Matsuoka. From your knowledge do you know if
the Big Island Police Department has taken a position for or against the use of low
pressure sodium? My recollection, I believe the Big Island has had that
ordinance, I believe, since the mid to late 1980s. Do you have any additional info
with regards to the Big Island Police position on this?

16

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

October 31, 2005

MR. MATSUOKA: No, not at this time, but, you know, I can, I can give them a call and
see what kind of stance they have on it.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
MR. MATSUOKA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Chairman. Good morning.
MR. MATSUOKA: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: I guess when there is subdivisions that, that do come up
and the Police Department does get involved in terms of, I guess, specifics in
various subdivisions that would include lighting and safety, because this is a
transition from a, a standard bright type of a light to the low sodium do you have
any concerns about this type of transition, especially in one particular street that is
close to Front Street in Lahaina?
MR. MATSUOKA: Well, definitely again, you know, these street lights are here, are
there specifically for public safety, and any time I believe that there would be any
type of degradation, especially to the public or, and as far as our investigation I
think we would have concerns about it, but exactly how far these concerns would
go, again, would, we would have to do, like, a, a side-by-side comparison
between the two to see how strongly we would feel about those issues.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. What would the, what would the Department's
primary issue be?
MR. MATSUOKA: Again, I think just, just from seeing personally the, the lights in Hilo
I know there's the definite color degradation of vehicles and sometimes that's the
only thing we have when, if we have a hit and run, things like that. Because of
the lower light levels I think you definitely have a, a sight distance degradation as
far as identification, suspect identification.
So, those, again, are issues that we would be looking at. And I think partly to a
public perception would playa part of that how, how people accept the lower
light conditions, and, but, again, until we actually do a side-by-side comparison I
think would, wouldn't do justice for either side to really say at this time.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Captain.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Mateo. Member Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Captain Matsuoka, you mentioned the
light degradation of colors of cars and any potential suspects. Would it help if we
had lighting that, we had a mixture of the low pressure sodium and the high
pressure sodium that might help, I guess, reduce the color degradation? Is that
something you think the Department might be, I guess, more supportive of,
because I know the Department has had some concerns about the use of LPS?
Any comment on that?
MR. MATSUOKA: Well, I think it would depend too how far apart the street lights
actually are. I think if they're far, so far apart that one doesn't really interfere
with the other than I, I don't think that that would be a, you know, I mean, they
wouldn't compensate for each other.
I mean, there may be, I don't, and I don't know ifthere's other alternatives for the
high pressure sodium whether you have shades that can be put on them so the
lights stay, point further directly down instead of out to the sides, the ambient
light. I mean I'm not sure if those are, are options at this time. Again, it would
hard, it would be hard to say without an actual side-by-side comparison, I think.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Molina. Members, any more questions
for the Police Department? If not, thank you, again, Captain Matsuoka.
MR. MATSUOKA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, if there is no objections to this particular test that
Public Works is requesting to do the Chair would like to recommend that we go
ahead and do the testing by installing street lights at various streets here on Maui
County. If there is no objections we'll go ahead and do that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman. Recess.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Recess, please.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Recess.
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RECESS:
RECONVENE:

9:42 a.m.
9:45 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... (gavel) . .. Thank you very much for that short recess. The
Committee meeting is now back in session. At this time, the Department will do,
as proposed, a six months test to be concluded July 2006; is that right? And we'll,
hopefully we'll have a lot of public testimony in regards to the, the lights that are
being installed at various locations here on Maui. At least the public will have an
opportunity to look at, you know, the difference between high pressure sodium as,
versus low pressure sodium in regards to this proposal that is being considered by
the Administration.
So, Members, without any objections the Chair would like to defer this matter.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No objection.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chairman. I have no objections to the
deferral. I'd just like to share with the Committee during the recess I talked to
Mr. Rick Chong, who was on the Subcommittee for Outdoor Lighting, and he also
shared with me that over in Salt Lake on Oahu they do have a low pressure
system of lights that they have.
So, for the Committee's information if they would like to get feedback from that
area as well. And I guess in the future for the Department's consideration the
possibility of maybe the mixture of low pressure sodium and high pressure
sodium as a possible way to reduce costs might be something that can be
considered as well if a bill is approved with regards to outdoor lighting,
Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Molina. And, again, I'd like to remind the
Members that's going to be attending the HSAC meeting in Kona, we'll have that
ability to look at the low pressure sodium fixtures that are now installed in that
area of the Big Island. So, Members, if there's no objection the Chair would like
to defer this matter.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much.
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ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion

8

PRESERVATION

OF

HANA

HISTORIC

BRIDGES

(C.C. No. 05-94)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, the second Item on our agenda is PW -8. This
involves the preservations of Hana historic bridges. This is a result of County
Communication No. 05-94, transmitting correspondence dated January 12, 2005,
from the chairperson, the County Cultural Resource Commission relating to the
rehabilitation of Koukouai and Waikani bridges Hana, Maui.
This morning I'd like to have the Director as well as Mr. Krueger provide some
comments in regards to the particular bridges that is being considered for, I guess
reconstruction in Hana. Department.
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. This Item sterns from a January 12,2005,
letter from the Maui County Cultural Resources Commission pertaining to the
Hana historic bridges. Mr. Frank Nelson from the Oregon State Department of
Transportation was here to provide information on their bridge rehabilitation
program. The Oregon DOT has done a number of bridge rehabilitation projects,
which has utilized cathodic protection to reduce the onset of corrosion.
While he was here on Maui Mr. Nelson inspected the Waikane bridge, which is
under the jurisdiction of the State of Hawaii DOT and Koukouai bridge, which is
under the jurisdiction of the County.
We are in the process of investigating the use of this technology for a possible
rehab of Koukouai bridge. Mr. Joe Krueger and Mr. Michael Dean from our
Engineering Division Staff did, in fact, do a site visit to Oregon to obtain more
information of the use of this technology and had extensive meetings with Mr.
Nelson. So, Mr. Krueger is here this morning, and he can provide additional
information on that, that site visit.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Krueger.
MR. KRUEGER: Thank you. We went to Oregon specifically to look and investigate
restoring historical bridges and preserving it using cathodic protection. They
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actually provided field training on the job site to Mike and I, and a Dr. Vermili
from Washington, D.C., who is in charge of historic bridges and steel reinforcing
was also with us.
We actually did what the subcontractor does on a bridge. They trained us to do
their work, so we could understand exactly what they did. We went, we went
through their construction site to see how a bridge is reconstructed and installed
with cathodic protection. These bridges are on Highway 101 in Oregon and in a
very sensitive area. They're subject to the ocean winds like we are, so, it's, it's
fairly close to our climate when it, when it comes to steel rusting and, and, and the
high salt winds.
Comparing that to our bridges we think we possibly could restore Koukouai
bridge with cathodic protection. We've initiated a field study to determine what
is there and what needs to be done, and that has yet to be completed. We also
need to clarify what Federal funds are available in restoring a bridge.
Preliminary information we have is that if you restore a bridge just for looks and
not for use you cannot get full Federal funding as you would a normal repla ... ,
bridge replacement project. So, that's why this, this field testing is also important
to find out when we finish with the project what capacity the bridge need will
have.
And we have several issues with the bridge. One is the capacity. Two, is the, the
tort liability, because there are no standards for one lane bridges as of this time,
but since the Legislature has initiated, passed a law that, the State Legislature, for
flexible design plans that will help us with the tort liability, but it will also
establish design details and standards for one lane bridges.
Right now, we are borrowing Vermont's standards, and it's analyzed by the State
and approved by the State on a case by case basis. So far our one lane bridges are
going to be 16 feet wide. Koukouai is only 15.1 feet wide.
We have a preservation plan for our bridges within the historic district of Hana
Highway. Hana Highway is a historic road from Huelo to Kipahulu. We have 14
bridges between Hana and Kipahulu. Those, those are our bridges. From Hana to
Huelo is all State. So, we've developed a preservation plan for, for our 14
bridges.
We have more than one alternative for Koukouai. One is to build a new bridge
next to it, and restore Koukouai for pedestrian use. Another one would be just to
redo the floor to make it structurally sound and widen it to be within the 16 feet
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and restore the arches. And then there's the other one just to restore the bridge, if
we can meet the capacity, and then just widen the top to 16 feet.
So, that's what, that's where we are right now. We're waiting for our field
investigation to determine what the capacity can be if we restore it, and to, to
finalize what Federal fundings are available.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the Department?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Yes.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. Thank you for coming down
today. We've been concerned about these bridges for over 30 years, and we have
come to the point that we're at now before, but it's always been to where the
bridge standards were such that replacement was not possible, because we were
told that we would have to go to a really wide Federal standard bridge. And
we've had many meetings in Hana, which I think you've attended some of them
at the school, and we've gone on and on.
The consensus from the community finally is that if the bridge needs to be
replaced we want it replaced as close as possible to the existing bridge. And if it
can be repaired we want it to be repaired first, but if it can't be repaired like
Papaahawahawa that it should be replaced as near as possible to what we have.
All right. Now, having said that and from your remarks we're concerned that we
could be on this endless merry-go-round of evaluation, and well let's see what
new technology might bring, or well, let's not do this. Let's see what might be
available. We can only sit down and plan so much.
We don't want to wait until the bridges collapse. Does anybody here question
what would happen if we lost one bridge on either side, what the effect would be
on Hana? I mean, it's been over 30 years. Yes, you haven't been involved with it
that long, but we have, 30 years, over.
I would like to see the Department work diligently. You've already come to the
community, you know what we want, you know what we need. We don't want to
see any more delays. The bridges that can be repaired and structurally sound. We
need bridges that can carry the loads, that the trucks can go over to bring our
supplies in and that are safe, and still yet keeping the ambience that we have for
the Hana Highway.

22

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

October 31, 2005

We went to great lengths with Dolly Straser before to have Hana Highway
declared a millennium trail, because it's so important to us, but we don't want to
get on this endless merry-go-round where there's going to be another study, or
another proposal, or you're going to look in someplace in the mainland for this or
that, and will be another 30 years before we see any work done on the bridge.
We have funding. The Council set aside extra funds for these bridges. I thank my
fellow Council members and the Administration. Money is there, and Federal
money is there. It's time to see some action, and I would hope that the
Department would proceed quickly on this. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Carroll. Member, the Department want to
respond to that first?
MR. KRUEGER: We agree we should as soon as possible.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chairman. Just a follow-up on Member
Carroll's comments and questions. The, I guess the, the letter that I'm looking at
from Ms. Sablas, the chairperson of the Maui County Cultural Resources
Commission on the back page, paragraph four, she mentions a concern about the
many layers of asphalt on the bridges. And I guess she's, I guess implying that
the stress of the asphalt could have an impact on the bridges. Is that something
the Department is considering as far as taking off these layers of asphalt?
MR. KRUEGER: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, and I have one other question. I believe it related to
the, the two bridges that, I guess, Mr. Nelson looked at. Did he also, I guess, can
we assume that the other bridges are in similar condition to the Waikani and
Koukouai bridges as well?
MR. KRUEGER: Not really. Some of them are in real good shape. They'll last another
10, 15 years. The reason he looked at these two bridges is because they are not,
besides being historic they're architecturally significant. These are arch bridges,
and they're very architecturally significant. That's why everybody wants to
preserve it including us, because it's, it's very significant bridges.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: So, in terms of public safety the rest of the bridges are, for the
most part, okay. Structurally sound.
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MR. KRUEGER: We have some, some are better and some are very, very bad, worse
condition than these two. That's why we're doing the other ones first. Koukouai
is on the design table, but we have four bridges before that that will be in
construction before then.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Molina. Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Chairman. And I guess just to continue
since it's on the, the STIP already do, do we have an idea where it is on the STIP
in terms of it's listing?
MR. KRUEGER: I think it's 2008.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: 2008.
MR. KRUEGER: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. So, the bridges prior to that will be done, you
would have an idea when?
MR. KRUEGER: Six and seven. 2006 and 2007.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And the reason this one is in 2008 is, is in addition to
studies is to secure additional funds that will be needed to ...
MR. KRUEGER: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, and-MR. KRUEGER: It's funding, and we, we, we try to time the design and the funding
availability.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And the work that will be scheduled for this bridge in
2008, that would be based on what, what you had mentioned either the-MR. KRUEGER: One of the alternatives.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --restore or the rebuild?

24

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

October 31, 2005

MR. KRUEGER: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Mateo. Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I was curious about that Oregon comparison Mr.
Krueger gave. Those bridges in Oregon did the people in those areas, those
communities have alternate routes to use besides just that road with the bridge?
MR. KRUEGER: On the bridges where the capacity was diminished an alternate route
was installed so that the capacity was there for the weight load. Where, where the
capacity wasn't there for the traffic load, they doubled the size of the bridge.
They went from two to four lanes. They built another bridge right adjacent to it.
So, they had two concerns with, with the load of the bridge and the width of the
bridge.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Were those bridges that you had an
opportunity to see in Oregon also one lane bridges?
MR. KRUEGER: No. No, they were a minimum of two lanes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So, our one lane is something totally different from
what they had?
MR. KRUEGER: Correct. Our, our one lane is what makes it unique. That was one of
the reason it got nominated to the historic register.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Uh-huh. You know, lately since we've been, have
many colleagues and, and regions of the U.S. that's been dealing with civil
defense evacuation and other public safety issues, is your Division, your
Department reviewing this in the context of whether or not one lane bridges is still
appropriate and safe for our, our people in East Maui? There's no, you know, I
mean there's the airport. I wouldn't call their harbor able to maybe maintain
commerce and, and certain levels that I would think East Maui would be required
to have should a natural emergency occur. So, how good is our road system to
respond to civil defense?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department.
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Hokama, you're, you're aware, of course, that this
whole discussion regarding the one lane bridges have been taking place over an
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extended period of time, but you do bring up a good point as far as civil defense
issues, because of the recent events that have taken place. And we haven't
touched base recently with our Office of Civil Defense, but we, we can do so, and
see if there are any new directives that may be coming down from either the
Federal Government or State Government regarding, regarding civil defense or
evacuation issues.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. ARAKAWA: So, we can check.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. But there's no other alternatives as far as
reroute, rerouting our road system to still keep the bridge, our historic bridges, but
maybe provide another option for us, whether it be for Fire to respond or for
National Guard to respond with their type of equipment and, and load
requirements?
MR. KRUEGER: Initially when we started our projects were installed, we were going to
install two lane bridges. We couldn't get an SMA permit. The Planning
Commission, the Hana Advisory Commission, and the Cultural Resource
Commission were all against two lane bridges, yet we ... (change tape, End Side
1B). .. two lane bridge, and we could not get an SMA permit. Even up to that
point the State was not allowing us to put in a one lane bridge. When we were
denied our SMA permit to build those two lane bridge, then we had no other
alternative than go to a one lane bridge.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. ARAKAWA: Then at that time the State said all right, we'll give you design
exception on a case by case basis.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. No, I, I just bring it up, because I, I think it's
appropriate for, if those communities want certain things, like, for Lanai, you're
not going to have a Queen's Hospital Medical Center to service Lanai. Okay.
You want that you live in Honolulu. You're not going to get it on Lanai.
And so, I just bring it up, because I think people need to be aware that, you know,
there's restrictions when we agree to certain things, and you will not have the full
services that other more, more larger communities have the benefit of. I just think
we need to make people aware that these are some of the restrictions when we
make certain choices. Thank you, Chairman.

26

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

October 31, 2005

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Hokama. I have a question for the
Department. As far as the existing bridges that are under our control what is the
load limit for those bridges?
MR. KRUEGER: The lowest is two tons.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Two tons?
MR. KRUEGER: Correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And if we do have, like, say vehicles that are above two tons
the 1O-JVW' s, do they need special, or just prohibited?
MR. KRUEGER: They're prohibited.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. KRUEGER: Because we're on the Kipahulu side of Hana. I believe on, from
Huelo to Hana, I believe the, the loading is a minimum ten tons.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ten tons?
MR. KRUEGER: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, and you mentioned about the possibility of building a
new bridge alongside the Koukouai one-MR. KRUEGER: Right.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --and then utilize Koukouai as a pedestrian walk only?
MR. KRUEGER: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: How much would that add to the cost of that particular project?
MR. KRUEGER: If, if, if we do that alternative, see what we're, what we're doing is
we're, we're not destroying the bridge. We'll either save it as a pedestrian, or
we'll somehow use it as, as a regular bridge, but if, if we just save it as a
pedestrian bridge, and we put a new one next to it, the Feds will go 80/20 on
construction funds for that new bridge, but for the old bridge whatever we'd want
to do the only funds they would allow us would be a cost to demolish it.
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So, if it costs 100,000 to demolish it, that's all the amount of funds they would
give us to fixing it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Do we have any idea just to rehab it for pedestrian walk only?
MR. KRUEGER: Well, if, if to rehab it just for pedestrian use would be a lot less than
for vehicle use. Probably at least half the cost.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Which is approximately?
MR. KRUEGER: Well, I'm estimating if, if we do restore it, it probably would be about
$4 million.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, I did receive some comments from the
Department of Highways, Mr. Cajigal, and it's going to be included in the
testimony part of our meeting here this morning. Members, any more questions
for the Department in regards to this particular subject PW -8? Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I, I just would ask that you would contact Fire
Department for, for comments on this, please?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We'll do that. Thank you. If there's no more questions or
discussion regarding PW -8 the Chair, without objections, would like to defer this
item.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.

ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much. Members, that ends our agenda
items for this morning. Is there any announcements? If not, this meeting
of October 31st is adjourned... (gavel) . ..
ADJOURNED:

10:13 a.m.

28

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

October 31, 2005

APPROVED:

SEPH PONT ANILLA, Chair
Public Works Committee
pw:min:051 031 :jc

Transcribed by: Jessica Cahill

29

CERTIFICATE

I, Jessica Cahill, hereby certify that the foregoing represents to the best of my ability, a
true and correct transcript of the proceedings. I further certify that I am not in any way
concerned with the cause.
DATED this 21st day of November, 2005, in Wailuku, Hawaii

!

,

,

,

I

f

(Jessi9a Cahill

'-- /
..

